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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Consisting of seven to nine-story blockhouses when Gaspar
Castafio de Sosa visited the Pueblo of Picuris in 1591, the
village is now composed of one-story structures. The oldest
portion of the pueblo is to the north of the village proper and
consists merely of wall fragments which now serve as corrals
and stables. The newer portions are to the south and are built
west and northwest of the church. The adobe homes are built
around two main plazas and four underground ceremonial kivas
are also to be found at Picuris. The church which was in the
process of being constructed in 1776 is situated west of the
site of an earlier structure ordered torn down in 1669 by
Governor Pedro Fermin de Mendinueta.

In 1776 Fray Francisco-Atanasio Dominguez described the
pueblo: A,

Said tenements are shaped like a sugar loaf, and the
houses are heaped there one upon another as if they had tried
to build the Tower of Babel. The ascent to them is by
ladders which begin at the communal lower floor, with a
landing on the flat roof of the lower dwelling. On this
flat roof there is another small ladder that rests on another
flat roof, and so another and another up to the top, the
flat roof of one house being the terrace of another and
serving as a landing between one ladder and the next.

Although there is an occasional very small door in these
houses, the entrance to most of them is a coi (I refer to
-Tesuque) -on -the flat -rodf;-and inside there arel!others from
room to room to the bottom. Now in view of this heap of
houses, it is obvious that the dwellings, or rooms, in the
heart of these tenements are totally dark, and therefore
they are entered by the light of brands. The height of
these sugar loaves or honeycombs, must be about 25 to 30
varas, [l vara equals 32 2/3 inches] and there will be five
or six dwellings from bottom to top, one over the other.
(pp. 97-98)

Major John G. Bourke, U.S.A., in 1881 also inventoried
Picuris and of both the old and new sections of the pueblo,
he noted:

The old pueblo is a veritable relic of antiquity; built
of "cajon,"” [large adobe blocks] it must at one time have
been of large dimensions, but at this date only three
stories remain and these are rapidly going to pieces. The
workmanship was extremely crude, the wood used being split
with axes and gut together in a clumsy way. There were no
wingows opeming n the outside; presumably, there must have
beeg openings upon an interior court of small size, but this

I could not deyermine exactly, there being no ladder and the
: (See Continuation Sheet #1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The unauthorized expedition of. Gaspar Castaﬁo de Sosa. in
1591 was the first to visit the Tiwa-speaking Pueblo of Picuris
Because of the threatening attitude of the .Indians, however, he
retreated from the village but only after having observed that
the house blocks were from seven to nine-stories tall. Juan de
Ofiate, the Colonizer of New Mexico, also visited Picuris and
encountered Josephe, a Mexican Indian survivor of the ill-fated
Francisco Leiva Bonilla and Juan de Humafia expedition of 1593,
From him, Ofiate was able to learn the unknown details of this
illegal undertaking. On July 13, 1598, Ofiate gave the pueblo
the name San Buenaventura and referred to it as the "Gran
Pueblo de los Picurils.” Later in September at the neighboring
Tewa-speaking Pueblo of San Juan, the natives of Picuris
formally submitted to Offate and Fray Francisco de Zamora was
assigned to the pueblo.

e

Fray Martin de Arvide established a m1551on at Plcuris as
early -as 1621 and shortly thereaftex, -had built a church.and
convento. In 1634, Fray Alonso de Benavides noted that the
pueblo had more than 2,000 baptized Indians.: He, further,
observed:

They have been the most indomitable and treacherous
people of the whole kingdom. Thus the friars have suffered
greatly at their hands, in particular the blessed martyr,
Fray Martin de Arvide, [killed by Zufiis February 27, 1632]
for they dragged him around the plaza and almost killed him
because he scolded an old Indian who was opposing his son's
desire to become a Christian. (p. 70).

The Indians of Picurils participated in the great Pueblo
Revolt of 1680 killing their missionary Fray Matias de
Renddén on August 10th and burning the church. Luis
Tupatd, a Picuris Indian and one of the major instigators
of the rebellion, then directed the tribe to aid the Taos
and Tewa in the siege of Santa Fe. During the twelve years
of Pueblo Independence, Tupatd was twice chosen to succeed
Popé, another major leader of the revolt.

When General Diego de Vargas Zapata Lujan Ponce de Ledn

reentered Picuris on October 5, 1692, (See Continuation Sheet #1
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7. "BESCRIPTION continued

edifice being in such a tumble down condition that my guide
said it would not be prudent to attempt to climb about it.

I abided by his views, as he had only a few moments previously
been in some of the outer rooms on the lower floor to hunt up
and chase out the old eagle.

«+. The number of houses in Picuris cannot be much, if any,
over thirty; they are about equally divided between one-storied
and two-storied, but there are none higher than the latter.
The Pueblo has a slouchy, down in the heel look, greatly at
variance with the neat, trim and cleancut look of the Mexican
settlements in the neighboring valleys. (pp. 280-281)

The pueblo and church are in good condition and are being well
maintained by the tribe. Last year, an arts and crafts center
was constructed at the village. The structure also serves as a
small museum.

8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

the tribe submitted to him and 86 children were baptized. At
this time, the pueblo consisted of three and four-storied
dwellings. During his second entrada in 1693, vVargas learned
that the Pieurls were again hostile toward Spanish reoccupatioh
of New Mexico. He found the pueblo abandoned in the summer of]
1694 but did not allow pillage of any kind. Not until May of
the following year, was Picurils finally resettled and a
missionary assigned.

The Picuris Indians rebelled again on June 2, 1696 but
because of fear of losing their crops soon made an attempt at
peace. Vargas visited the village on October 10, and observed
that the church had been whitewashed and swept clean. Fearing
Spanish reprisal for three horses stolen from Santa Cruz, the
Picuris Indians fled their village on October 19th and along
with some Tewas and Tanos set out into the buffalo plains.
Vargas found the pueblo abandoned on October 22 and followed
the fleeing tribe until the 26th at which time he overtook the
Indians in a canyon of the Mora River south of present Fort
Union National Monument. Here, he managed to capture 84
women and children who were given to his men as servants.
Those who had escaped continued on to the Apache village of
Cuartelejo located in Kansas.

(See Continuation Sheet #2)
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8. SIGNTFICANCE continued

By 1706, Fray Juan Alvarez noted, "There are about three
hundred Christian persons, and the others keep coming in who
have been among the Apaches." He further stated that Picuris
had a new church but was a visita of San Juan which was
ministered by Fray Pedro Mata. After receiving numerous pleas
from returning Picurils Indians, Governor Francisco Cuervo y
Valdez sent Captain Juan de Ulibarri on July 13 of that same
year to gain the release of the Picurls natives from their
Indian captors and escort them home. On August 31, the
returning party reached Picurls where they were met by Fray
Francisco Ximenez.

In 1760, Bishop of Durango Pedro Tamardén visited Picuris
and enumerated 328 persons living at the pueblo. Nine years
later, Comanches attacked the village and sacked the convento.
As a result, Governor Pedro Fermin de Mendinueta ordered the
church and convento torn down and a new mission built near the
pueblo plaza. Fray Francisco Atanasio Dominguez inventoried
the Pueblo of San Lorenzo de Picurls as it was then known in
1776 and noted, "The new church is adobe with quite thick wallsg,
single-naved, with the outlook and main door due south. It is
24 varas [l vara equals 32 2/3inches] long, 7 wide, and what
has been built is now 3 varas high." (p. 92). This is presently
the church in use. Dominguez listed 223 persons at the pueblo,
a drastic drop in population in 16 years, and 278 non-Indians
as residing near the village.

By 1808, the population at Picurls increased to 309 persons.
Indian Agent W.F.M. Arny cited a decrease in 1870 when he
stated, "the whole number of the Indians on the reserve is 127"
He further elaborated that 799 non-Indians were on pueblo landd.
In 1881, Major John G. Bourke, U.S.A., visited the pueblo and
wrote, "In agriculture, they still employ the rude wooden plow
and transport their crops to market in creaking wooden ‘carretas’.
They make no baskets or blankets and but little pottery, of a
very inferior quality. Much of what I saw among them had been
brought from San Juan,...." (p. 278)

The large number of Spaniards living near Picuris led to
many land problems. In 1829, the Indians submitted a protest
to Juan de Jesus Martinez, the alcalde of Picuris, concerning
the application for a non-Indian grant on lands adjoining the
pueblo. The proposed grant was annulled and in the same year,
another grant had to be protested. 1In this case, the
encroachers were required to vacate the property as soon as
their crops were harvested. The United States Congress on
December 22, 1858 confirmed a 17,460.69 acre grant to the
pueblo. Due to later court decisions, the present reservation

(See Continuation Sheet #3)
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and: graﬁt/COn51sts of only 14,959 acres.

The pueblo has kept many of its traditions and an annual
fiesta and corn dance are held on the 10th of August. Concerning
thepottery at Picuris, Stanley A. Stubbs writes:

Picuris, like Taos, gave up the manufacture of painted
pottery about the time of the Pueblo Revolt. Since then, it
has specialized in a cooking ware characterized by a large
amount of yellow mica in the clay, which gives the finished
pieces a bronze, metallic look. This pottery has been widely
traded among the Pueblos and Mexicans, and even the Anglos,
for it is said that beans taste better when cooked in one of

these jars; the same idea as the "Boston bean pot" for baked
beans. (p. 30).
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